
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Resources Department 
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 

 

 

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE D 

 

Members of Licensing Sub Committee D are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 7 September 2023 at 6.30 
pm. 

 
 
 
 

Enquiries to : Theo McLean 

Tel : 020 7527 6568 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 30 August 2023 

 
 

Membership Substitute 
 
Councillor Phil Graham (Chair) 

Councillor Marian Spall (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Clare Jeapes 
 

All other members of the Licensing 

committee 

 
Quorum: is 3 Councillors 
 
 

Welcome :  Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  
Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 

1.  Introductions and procedure 

 

 

2.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.  Declarations of substitute members 
 

 

4.  Declarations of interest 

 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it 
becomes apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in 
the discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a)Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between 
you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) 
and the council. 

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.  

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a 
place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of 
the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 
 

 

5.  Order of Business 

 

 

6.  Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
 

1 - 14 



 
 
 

B.  
 

Items for Decision 
 

Page 

1.  Naar, 94 Old Street, EC1 9AY - New premises licence 
 

15 - 54 

2.  Jimmy and the Bee, 135 Goswell Road, EC1V 7JY - New premises licence 

 

55 - 82 

3.  Perilla Dining, 84-86 Rosebery Avenue, EC1R 4QY - New premises licence 
 

83- 118 

C.  
 

Urgent non-exempt items 
 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered 

urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will 
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

D.  
 

Exclusion of public and press 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the 

agenda, any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or 
confidential information within the terms of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the 

press and public during discussion thereof. 

 

E.  
 

Urgent Exempt Items (if any) 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently 
by reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be 

agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 
 



 
 
 

 
ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES -   

  

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

  

INTRODUCTION TIME 

GUIDE 

1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-

Committee, Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have 

been given permission to appear) to introduce themselves. 

 

  

2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as 

detailed below. 

 

  

CONSIDERA TION OF APPLICATIONS:  

  

N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to 

present a summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the 

report. 

 

  

3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or 

representations. 

Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions. 

 

  

4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 

requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 mins 

  

5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.  

  

6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 

requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.  

10 mins 

  

7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.  

  

8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify 

any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear.  

10 mins 

  

9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.  

 

10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing 

Policy. 

 

 

11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of 

representations     given above. 

 

 

CASE SUMMARIES 

 

  

12)  Responsible Authorities 2 

13)  Interested parties mins 

14)  Applicant each 
  

DELIBERA TION AND DECISION  
 

15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 

remain with the Sub-Committee. 

 

 

16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 

clarification. 

 

 

17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 

licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing. 

 

 



 

1 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee D held at Committee Room 4, 

Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on  20 April 2023 at 6.30 pm. 
 
 

Present: Councillors: Shaikh (Vice-Chair, in the Chair), Croft and Staff 

    

 

 
Councillor Shaikh in the Chair 

 

 
35 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1) 

Councillor Shaikh welcomed everyone to the meeting and officers and members introduced 
themselves.  The procedure for the conduct of the meeting was outlined. 

 

36 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2) 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Weekes. 

 
37 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3) 

Councillor Staff substituted for Councillor Weekes. 

 

38 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4) 
There were no declarations of interest.  

 
39 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5) 

The order of business would be as per the agenda.  

 

40 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6) 
RESOLVED 

That the minutes of the meeting held on the 2nd February 2023 be confirmed as a correct 
record and the Chair be authorised to sign them. 

 
41 M'NUCHAH BAR, 392 CAMDEN ROAD, N7 0SJ - PREMISES LICENCE 

VARIATION (Item B1) 
The Chair of the Committee opened by asking the licensing officer for any additional 
information that had become available since the publication of the agenda. In response, the 
Licensing Officer informed the Sub Committee that there had been a slight typo on the 
opening time on the variation application in the agenda pack and corrected it to 10am each 
day. The Licensing Officer also reported that the applicant had now agreed to all the police 
conditions, but the representation had not been withdrawn. 
 
When asked by the Committee to outline their representation, the Police informed members 
that they had been Informed by the applicant’s solicitor that the applicant did now accept the 
police conditions. However, the reason the responsible authority for policing hadn’t 
withdrawn their objection was because they hadn’t yet seen a hire agreement, to which they 
expressed hope that it was just an oversight. The Police also stated that while the applicant 

Page 1

Agenda Item A6



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

2 
 

had completed box three on variation conditions, outlining activities, the responsible 
authority was still not able to understand specifically what the activities would entail. The 
responsible authority stated that the Sub Committee should only approve the licence if they 
were happy with the proposed use of the premises, in line with the conditions.  
 

The Police went on to say that the engagement to date from the applicant had not been to 
the standard that they would expect and was not certain that the conditions proposed were 
proportionate or would best reflect the licensing objectives but was willing to listen to further 
clarifications / evidence. 
 
When asked by the Committee to outline their representation, the Licensing Authority stated 
their objection remained as it stood in the published agenda pack. The main concern 
centred on the submitted fire risk assessment, which showed several deficiencies and 
added that the Licensing Authority had not seen anything to date to show that it had been 
rectified. There was also concern regarding electrical wiring and gas safety issues. These 
concerns were amplified by the premises being particularly large with residential units 
above, and that it would pose a danger to residents as well as customers. The Licensing 
Authority stated they too had no feedback from the applicants until today’s hearing and that 
the matter had been going on for some time, with the case itself, adjourned repeatedly. 
 
The Chair of the Committee asked the Licensing Authority whether Building Control had 
been involved with the matter, to which the Licensing Authority stated that Building Control 
had not heard anything in respect of the application, but that the applicant would likely need 
a building inspector to approve any remedial, structural works and no evidence had been 
provided to date that could show this had been done.  
 
When asked by the Sub-Committee to present their case, the Legal Representative for the 
applicant stated that the proposed conditions from the police had been accepted highlighted 
that the applicant had tabled two restrictive changes as part of the application – to remove 
the sale of alcohol off-premises and to reduce hours it can be sold. Permissive changes 
sought, included increasing the capacity to 190, to allow films to be shown, and live and 
recorded music. The reason given for requesting the license for recorded music on Sunday 
to commence from 9am was to enable churches who wish to use the event space to 
conduct sound checks before the main service. 

 
The Legal Representative gave an overview of the business itself, outlining that since 2019 
there had been renovations of the former bed and breakfast to where the premises could 
now operate as a part hotel, events space, creative lounge, and podcast studio. The Legal 
Representative stated that the applicant had a clear vision for the premises where 
businesses, charities and creatives would all be able to make use of the space. There was 
scope for private events, but the focus was not on being an alcohol led business.  
 
The Legal Representative stated that they were of the knowledge that in the last month, the 
wiring had been tested by UK Power Networks and by the electrical provider. Gas and fire 
safety concerns had also been addressed. Regarding the building regulations, the Legal 
Representative stated that there had been no structural changes to walls / low bearing walls 
and added that there had been no formal representations by Building Control.  
 
The Legal Representative acknowledged that engagement could be improved. They also 
cited Islington’s licensing policy in stating that the premises’ main focus meets the 
objectives of adding cultural value to the local area.  
 
Regarding the resident representation from November regarding potential noise and 
drunkenness, the Legal Representative stated that it was understood that this was just a 
concern that it might happen, not that it was currently happening, and hoped that the 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

3 
 

proposal to stop the sale off premises and reduce the hours in which it was sold, was 
enough to allay the resident’s concerns. 
 
When invited by the Legal Representative to add to their case to the Sub-Committee, the 
applicant informed members that the premises name, M’Nuchah, was a Hebrew word for 
rest. The applicant also stated that they had personally did a lot of work in the community 
and at Gracepoint. The applicant added that M’Nuchah was a place focused on community, 
which was completely different to former owners and the aim was to have a place that 
added value to the local area.  
 
Councillor Staff thanked the applicant for their commitment to the area, stating that the 
proposed use appeared to be positive, but wanted clarification that if the Aparthotel was on 
the upper floors and the events space was on the lower floors, what would be the measures 
to mitigate noise transference between the spaces. The applicant responded, noting that 
measures were in place, that alcohol was not taken upstairs, and the two spaces were 
completely separated.  
 
In response to further questions from the Sub-Committee, the applicant confirmed that there 
would be a designated premises supervisor on-site; the responsibility held by the Head of 
Operations will transferring over to himself and the Facilities Manager and both were in the 
process of obtaining the necessary certification. There would be two people on site Monday 
to Sunday and an Event Supervisor who would be on duty, 24 hours a day. Private security 
would also be present for events. 
 
Councillor Croft asked the applicant what kind of assurances they could provide that they 
would engage with responsible authorities. The applicant responded stating that they had 
regular meetings with New Scotland Yard, and that the space would be open to young 
people who may otherwise be on the streets. The applicant also outlined that they had done 
a lot of community engagement more broadly. 
 
In response to questions from the Chair of the Sub-Committee regarding what events would 
take place at the venue, the applicant informed members that this would include baby 
showers, business events, birthday parties, conferences, and weddings.  
 
The applicant noted that the business attracted a higher standard of patronage and 
background checks were conducted on those hosting. The applicant cited an example of a 
church with a congregation of fifteen that had recently begun at the venue and another 
church starting in June. The alcohol licence would only be needed for the events (birthday 
parties, weddings). 
 
When asked what arrangements were in place for the current events where alcohol was 
sold, the applicant responded stating that they do not sell alcohol. Supervision and SIA 
licenced security would be provided for every event, and this would include female security 
officers too, should female patrons need to be searched. 
 
The Chair of the Sub-Committee noted that the application had come to committee on 
several occasions and that they needed tangible evidence regarding the safety aspects of 
the building. The point was made to the applicant that should any issues arise regarding the 
operation of the premises, questions would be asked of the authority that granted the 
licence, and that the Sub-Committee needed to be convinced that they could trust that the 
applicant would engage with responsible authorities at any given time. The applicant 
responded stating that email threads existed showing co-operation but acknowledged more 
could be done. The legal representative requested a condition regarding building regulation. 
 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

4 
 

The Licensing Officer clarified that the case had not always adjourned because of 
procedure, the last time was due to the train strike. 
 
In summing up, the Police stated that they appreciated the engagement the applicant had 
with Scotland Yard and in the London Borough of Croydon, and was grateful that the 
conditions had been accepted, but after listening to representations stayed with the initial 
representation concerning the lack of engagement. The Police stated that they were not 
against the variation, but that it needed to be right for what the premises was, and the 
applicant needed to be accountable for the events that happened there.  
 
In summing up, the Licensing Authority, noted that the Sub-Committee could put on a 
condition stating that the licence cannot be used until assurances had been provided.  
 
The applicant told the Sub-Committee there was a designated area for smokers at the fence 
to the left-hand side of the premises on the side of Hillmarton Road and that smoke would 
not travel to neighbours. In response to concerns that the bar / kitchen equipment hadn’t 
been mapped out on the new plan, the applicant stated that was currently just an open 
space, mainly for aesthetics. 
 
In summing up, the Legal Representative stated that they hoped the Sub-Committee could 
see the passion on the display potential addition to the cultural offer in Islington, and that 
they hoped M’Nuchah was the type of premises the Council would like to see more of. 
 

RESOLVED 

1) That the application for the variation of a premises licence, in respect of M'nuchah 
Bar, 392 Camden Road, N7 0SJ, be granted to allow:- 
 

a. To allow the sale of alcohol on the premises only; Monday to Saturday from 
5pm to 11:30pm, and Sunday from 5pm to 11pm 

b. To allow the playing of live music and films; Monday to Saturday from 11am 
to 11:30pm, and Sunday from 12pm to 11:30pm 

c. To allow the playing of recorded music; Monday to Saturday from 11am to 
11:30pm, and Sunday from 9am to 11:30pm 

d. To allow late night refreshment from Monday to Saturday between 11pm and 
11:30pm. 

e. Opening hours from 10am to 11:30pm Monday to Sunday 
 

2) That conditions outlined in appendix 3 and detailed on page 67 to 70 of the agenda, 
with the exception of Condition 5, shall be applied to the licence, with the additional 
conditions as follows: The premises shall not be used for licensable activities until 
the applicant has submitted to the Licensing Authority a fire risk assessment and 
safety certificates relating to electricity, gas and building regulations, which have 
been signed off in writing.be applied to the licence. 
 

REASONS FOR DECISION 

The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
Two local resident objections had been received, but no resident attended. There had been 
three representations made by the responsible authorities, but Trading Standards and the 
Noise team had withdrawn their representations on agreement of conditions.  Conditions 
had been agreed with the police, but the police representation remained because of 
concerns at the lack of engagement and uncertainty as to how the premises would operate 

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

5 
 

with those conditions. The Licensing Authority made a representation raising concerns 
about public safety.  
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence that the event space on the ground floor was 
completely separate from the Aparthotel, and alcohol would not be taken up to the 
Aparthotel. The ground floor would be used for events such as weddings, baby showers, 
birthday parties and conferences, however other than events, the applicant envisaged 
community activities including a church on Sundays and hoped it would be a hub for 
community. The applicant emphasised that he had worked with Gracepoint, charities and 
Pentonville Prison, he was also regularly meeting with New Scotland Yard concerning knife 
crime and he hoped to hold community meetings and take young people off the streets.  
 
The applicant said that he needed the premises licence only for events. He was undertaking 
training as a DPS and obtaining a personal licence as was the facilities manager. There 
would be two such people in attendance Monday to Sunday and the events manager would 
be there 24 hours. There would be security at all times. He said that he had been in 
correspondence by email with responsible authorities for some time before the hearing, 
although the responsible authorities could not confirm this. The representative said that he 
was committed to dialogue with responsible authorities.  
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that pursuant to Licensing Policy 8, the applicant had in fact 
implemented advice given by responsible authorities.  
 
The Sub-Committee was concerned that there should be compliance with Licensing Policy 
14 on risk assessments. This is a matter of public safety and therefore added an additional 
condition requiring fire risk assessments and safety certificates to be provided. 
 
In addition, the Sub-Committee took into account the nature of some of the community 
groups and noted that conditions dealt with seizure and storage of drugs and the need to 
prevent the entry of drugs into the premises. 
 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that granting the variation to the premises licence with 

the additional condition, and on the hours granted, was proportionate and 
appropriate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and in the public interest. 

 

42 NOODLE BRAT, 53A CLERKENWELL CLOSE, EC1R 0EA - NEW PREMISES 
LICENCE (Item B2) 
The Chair of the Sub-Committee opened by asking the licensing officer for any additional 
information that had become available since the publication of the agenda. In response, the 
Licensing Officer informed the Sub-Committee that additional material had been forwarded 
to the residents that members of the Sub-Committee also had sight of. In respect of 
representations, the Licensing Officer told the Sub-Committee that there was one on page 
100 which didn’t disclose address so should be disregarded. Pg 113 withdrawn objection. 
 
When asked by the Sub-Committee to outline their objection, the interested party - a 
resident who lived above the premises – responded, stating that the building was Grade II 
listed and dated from 1793, it was old, small, and fragile, and they were afraid if there were 
more activities within the building, its structural integrity might be compromised. The 
resident questioned the proposal that had been communicated to them that heat detection 
was to be integrated into the building alarm system, because it was only Noodle Brat that 
had the building alarm. The resident also wanted to know when the inspection referred to in 
the application / reports took place, as well as the fire mitigations. The resident stated that 
the answers they received from the applicant was not satisfactory.   
 

Page 5



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

6 
 

In response, the Chair of the Committee advised the resident that these questions were 
mostly planning regulations were mostly concerning planning regulations and asked the 
resident to outline any queries in relation to the licence itself and how it would affect them. 
The resident responded in saying that Noodle Brat currently operated on weekdays and that 
they were afraid that if granted an alcohol licence, the premises would be sold onto another 
operator. The resident also stated that they didn’t believe Noodle Brat to take the rules 
seriously in relation to table licences. The Licensing Officer intervened to state that the 
resident’s detailed objections could be found at Page 107 of the report.  
 

When asked by the Sub-Committee to present their case, the Legal Representative for the 
applicant stated that the licence would only be for the building itself, and only for the on sale 
of alcohol consumption. The Legal Representative stated that the applicant had tried to 
engage with the residents who had made representations, noting that two had since 
withdrawn – there was difficulty in contacting some due to the anonymity of some 
representations. The Legal Representative stated that it was appreciated that the premises 
was located within a cumulative impact zone and noted that the premises would be fully 
closed by 11pm. Conditions with the police and licensing authority had been agreed. There 
would be no vertical drinking. There were two additional conditions put forward; one was to 
have a notice for patrons to be respectful of residents and the other was to sweep the 
curtilage at the end of evening. 
 
When invited by the Legal Representative to put forward his case, the applicant told the 
Sub-Committee that he managed an investment business property in Clerkenwell that had 
been trading for twenty years. They had identified a local operator called Katsuma and 
approached them regarding a lease on the property. After these discussions, the applicant 
decided to partner in the business, in which the aim was to create a high-quality Japanese 
restaurant that catered to a well-heeled audience. The applicant stated that currently, the 
premises enjoyed lots of repeat customers and has been successful since it opened.  
 
Responding to the resident, the applicant stated that the Fire Risk Assessment happened 
once a month, and that there was a fully operational smoke detection system in place. The 
applicant stated that there continued to be discussions regarding ventilation in the property 
and open dialogue with planners about how the smell can be reduced through carbon 
mechanisms. 
 
The Legal Representative stated that restricting hours to 9pm would have an impact on the 
delivery of service as there were currently two sittings in the evening which would need to 
be reorganised. 
 
The Legal Representative noted that the restaurant begun operation in August 2022, but 
without the sale of alcohol. However, customers begun bringing their own into the premises, 
and that this application for a licence to sell alcohol was a way of the applicant being able to 
regulate the consumption of alcohol on the premises and enforce Challenge 25.  
 
The applicant stated that regarding opening hours, going forward it would continue to be 
weekday-focused because their clientele was workers from businesses in the local area, 
who would come in at lunch and/or after work. It was reiterated that there were no plans to 
consume alcohol on the pavement, and vertical drinking had been removed on request from 
the Police – this had originally been planned for patrons who were waiting for a table.   
 
In summing up, the resident noted that Noodle Brat currently opened and closed before and 
after what it was supposed to, that the business was noisy and that if the opening hours 
were extended it would negatively affect themselves and neighbours. The resident offered 
evidence of tables being put out before 10am, which the resident stated demonstrated that 

Page 6



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

7 
 

the operator wouldn’t adhere to rules. The resident stated that there had been no 
engagement from the landlord. 
 
In summing up, the Legal Representative stated that the application was to provide some 
protection and regulation regarding alcohol use. It was agreed with the environmental health 
officer that noise should not emanate from the premises and highlighted the two additional 
conditions being offered tonight. The applicant was said to have understood the sensitivity 
of the area and wanted this restaurant to have buy in from residents. It was also anticipated 
that this branch could be the first of many. 
 
RESOLVED 
1) That the application for a new premises licence, in respect of Noodle Brat, 53a 

Clerkenwell Close, London, EC1R 0EA, be granted to allow:- 
 

a) The on sales of alcohol from 11am until 10pm each day. 
 

2) That conditions outlined in appendix 3 and detailed on page 116 to 119 of the agenda 
be applied to the licence: with the additional condition as follows: the restaurant will 
sweep the curtilage of the premises daily at the close of business. 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION 

 
Conditions had been agreed with the Police and the Noise Team and there were no 
representations from responsible authorities. Eight residents had objected, but only one 
resident attended. He lived above the premises and complained about cooking smells, the 
fragility of the building, and noise.  
 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 2 & 3.  The premises fall 
within the Clerkenwell cumulative impact area. Licensing 3.20 refers to Clerkenwell’s 
diverse and vibrant evening economy and the need to ensure that licensed premises were 
well-managed and any negative impacts in terms of crime, disorder, nuisance, and anti-
social behaviour were minimised. Licensing policy 3 creates a rebuttable presumption that 
applications for the grant or variation of premises licences which are likely to add to the 
existing cumulative impact will normally be refused following the receipt of representations, 
unless the applicant can demonstrate in the operating schedule that there will be no 
negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence that alcohol would be served with food. This was a 
restaurant specialising in high-quality food, such as buns, noodles, and ramen, and at the 
present time, customers were bringing their own alcohol. The second sitting in the 
restaurant took place at about 8.30pm. There would be no vertical drinking, as the applicant 
had agreed a condition with the Police that there would be no drinking at the bar prior 
customers to being shown to their tables.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that there were conditions prohibiting the emanation noise and 
vibrations from the premises and that a notice advising customers to leave quietly and 
consider local residents was also required. The applicant offered a further condition that the 
curtilage of the premises would be swept every night. 
 

Page 7



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

8 
 

The application with its’ conditions fell within an exception to the cumulative impact policy 
listed in Licensing Policy 3.25. This application had a comprehensive operating schedule, 
was not alcohol-led, and supplied alcohol for consumption on the premises and was a fully 
seated venue. The Sub-Committee was satisfied that there would be no negative 
cumulative impact on any of the licensing objectives.  
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that the granting of the licence with the agreed and 

additional conditions would promote the licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee was 
satisfied that the operating schedule demonstrated high standards of management and that 
the proposed use, meant that the premises would not add to the cumulative impact.  
 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that granting the premises licence was proportionate and 
appropriate to the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

 
43 D&D RESTAURANT, 347 HOLLOWAY ROAD - NEW PREMISES LICENCE 

(Item B3) 
The Chair of the Sub-Committee opened by asking the licensing officer for any additional 
information that had become available since the publication of the agenda.  
 
In response, the Licensing Officer informed the Sub-Committee that there had been a few 
representations from residents that were unable to attend this hearing and sent apologies. 
One of the representations unable to attend requested that the applicant did not play music 
after 10.30pm because they worked from home. Another representation unable to attend 
had raised doubts about the intentions of applicant and feared that in the later hours it 
would be run as a bar, thus causing noise, nuisance and a congregation of intoxicated 
persons that could obstruct access. That representation also sought to highlight a violent 
altercation that took place in the vicinity as part of their objection and stated that their 
flatmate had felt intimidated by the applicant. That representation also highlighted that they 
believed the applicant had failed to operate within the designated hours and was 
apprehensive about attending in-person. Conditions had been agreed with the Licensing 
Authority and Police who both haven’t made a representation. No responsible authorities 
had made a representation. The Licensing Officer acknowledged that there had been a 
crime in the vicinity, which had a CAD number, and that the applicant stated this was not 
connected to the premises. The Planning representation was centred on a technicality 
regarding the flues, but this had been withdrawn. The Licensing Officer stated that the hours 
required for the licence to be 12midday to 10pm on Saturdays and 12midday to 10.30pm on 
all other days. The premises would close at 11pm each day. The Licensing Officer also 
acknowledged that there had previously been noise complaints among other issues, but a 
lot of this was received during or relating to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Noise team were 
happy with the hours and conditions proposed. 
 
When asked by the Sub-Committee to outline their objection, the only interested party in 
attendance, a resident who lived in the flat above the premises since September 2021, told 
members that an incident had occurred at this time last year, in which significant noise 
emanated upstairs from the premises. The resident stated that there were three builders, 
conducting works in the late hours of the night and several noise complaints had been 
made, ranging in the double digits. The resident stated that the building works happened 
exclusively and represented a statutory nuisance. The resident stated that the noise had a 
negative impact on their wellbeing and ability to work from home. The resident also outlined 
instances of private parties in the premises that occurred throughout the night, but 
acknowledged that the applicant had apologised, albeit taking half an hour to clear the 
premises. The resident also highlighted that there was no insulation within the premises and 
highlighted an additional incident in March 2023. The resident alleged that during that 
incident a lot of late-night building works had taken place and that when they challenged the 

Page 8



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

9 
 

applicant, it resulted in a verbal altercation with a threat of violence. The resident told 
members that the nature of communication with applicants was not a miscommunication, 
and that the nature of communication had been aggressive. The resident stated that they 
opposed the granting of the licence. 
 
The Licensing Officer clarified that the most recent complaint about the premises was in 
relation to building works.  
 
The applicants stated that this was their fifth application and that they had been refused 
many times previously. The applicants sought to address the planning issues first, stressing 
that they had applied for a change of use on the premises, when many establishments 
circumvented this. The applicants stated that they did take into consideration noise issues, 
which was why they had reduced the area and affirmed that the main area was sound 
insulated.  
 
The applicants stated that all tenants had their contact details, and that the interested party 
in attendance was the most recent occupant. The applicant corroborated the incident 
described by the resident and stated that at the time they had provided the resident with 
assurances that the noise downstairs would be dealt with. The applicant refuted the 
allegation of aggressiveness, stating that they had apologised for disturbances. The 
applicant stated that they had accepted all conditions and would communicate with all 
parties. The applicant stated the premises would become a restaurant.  
 
The Sub-Committee pressed the applicants on how well they understood the licensing 
objectives, who the designated premises supervisor would be and how many trained 
officers. The applicant responded that this responsibility would fall to him and one other 
designated member of staff. The applicant also stated that they were putting signs up 
around the premises requesting patrons respect neighbours.  
 
When asked by the Sub-Committee to clarify the sound insulation of the premises, the 
applicants stated that the extension had no insulation. The application was for the main 
building which passed the test and was insulated. The applicant stated that the noise was 
building works.  
 
The Chair of the Sub-Committee noted that they would have liked to have seen the 
applicant build a relationship with neighbours and hoped this could happen going forward 
 
The applicant stated that this was not their first business, and that they were well-versed in 
ID verification. The applicant stated that they would be on the premises and was a well-
known figure in the community. 
 
In summing up, the resident stated that the relationship between the residents and the 
applicant had broken down and that the applicant had not made the effort to make amends. 
The resident stated that other residents were worried about the guests and applicants and 
that on the day of this hearing there had been building works in the premises. The resident 
reiterated that noise pollution from the premises emanates throughout the property.  
 
In summing up, the applicant apologised for any perceived aggressiveness or 
miscommunication, and stressed their commitment to follow the conditions imposed. The 
applicant also invited all residents to communicate and engage with them 
 
RESOLVED 

 
1) That the Sub-Committee has decided to adjourn the application for a new premises 

licence in respect of D&D Restaurant & Lounge, 347 Holloway Road, Islington, 

Page 9



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

10 
 

London, N7 0RN, under Regulation 12 (1) (a) of The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005, so that they can produce evidence of effective sound proofing. 
This will be adjourned to the meeting of 8th June 2023. 

 
44 TRIPLE 777 COFFEE BAR, 143 HOLLOWAY ROAD, N7 8LX - NEW 

PREMISES LICENCE (Item B4) 
The Chair of the Sub-Committee opened by asking the licensing officer for any additional 
information that had become available since the publication of the agenda. In response, the 
Licensing Officer informed the Sub-Committee that there was one resident representation 
querying the agreement of restaurant conditions. The applicant was aware that this was 
raised as a concern.  
 
When asked by the Sub-Committee to outline their case, the applicant told members that 
they were new to the area and that their business was focused on serving hot meals. The 
sale of alcohol will help the business and help to cover expenses with food and energy bills. 
Currently, the business sells meals, soft drinks, and snacks. The applicant stated that they 
tried to contact the neighbour but received no response. They wanted to have a good 
relationship with the neighbour and do whatever they could do to help her.. The applicant 
stated they agreed to the conditions and were trying to survive as a business.  
 
In response to questions from the Sub-Committee concerning a pavement licence, and 
patrons drinking alcohol outside, the applicant responded that alcohol would always only be 
served with food and that it would always be table service. The applicant was agreeable to 
a minimum spend but wouldn’t be sure of what value to set. 
 
It was noted that the premises was previously a café, and the applicant stated that they 
provided food such as lasagne. The applicant stated that they could adjust pavement 
seating. Most of the time the business closed early, usually between 9 and 10pm. The 
additional hours requested for the licence would only be to cover spikes in demand where 
the business could open for later. The applicant stated that they had few complaints 
previously. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1) That the application for a new premises licence, in respect of Triple 777, 143 
Holloway Road, London, N7 8LX, be granted to allow:- 

 
The sale by retail of alcohol, on and off supplies, Mondays to Sundays from 10am to 
10pm 
 
2) That conditions outlined in appendix 3 and detailed on page 193 to 196 of the 
agenda be applied to the licence, with the amendment to Condition 17 as follows: 
Regarding all off sales: alcohol is only to be sold for consumption off the premises 
where it is purchased as an ancillary to food with a minimum spend of £7 on food 

 
An additional condition shall also apply whereby the tables and chairs on the 
pavements do not obstruct the entrances and exits to neighbouring properties. 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION 

The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 

Page 10



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

11 
 

The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 2 & 3.  The premises fall 
within the Holloway Road and Finsbury Park cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 3 
creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for the grant or variation of premises 
licences which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused 
following the receipt of representations, unless the applicant can demonstrate in the 
operating schedule that there will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of the 
licensing objectives. Under Licensing Policy 3.53, the Licensing Authority is committed to 
working with potential applicants to maintain a well-managed evening economy, meeting 
resident and business needs whilst minimising any adverse impacts in terms of crime, 
disorder, nuisance, and anti-social behaviour.  
 
One local resident objection had been received, but the resident did not attend. Conditions 
had been agreed with the Police and Noise team.  There were no representations from 
responsible authorities.  
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence that the coffee shop had been open for four months 
without any complaints being made to the business. The resident complained about deposit 
of rubbish outside their flats, but this related to a previous business. Food would be 
provided with alcohol; salads, pies, scallops and noodles and lasagne would be heated in 
the microwave. 
 
The applicant accepted that from the photographs shown, a chair or table was apparently 
obstructing the door to the flats and agreed to a condition preventing obstruction.  
 
The application appeared to have a comprehensive operating schedule and was not 
alcohol-led. With the conditions, slightly reduced hours, given the nature of the business it 
seemed that there would be no negative cumulative impact on any of the licensing 
objectives.  
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that the granting of the licence with the agreed conditions 

would promote the licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee was satisfied that the operating 
schedule demonstrated high standards of management and that the proposed use, with the 
extensive conditions agreed, meant that the premises would not add to the cumulative 
impact. 
 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that granting the premises licence was proportionate and 
appropriate to the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

 

45 TETO STUDIO, 6 SHILLINGFORD STREET, N1 2DP - NEW PREMISES 
LICENCE (Item B5) 
The Chair of the Sub-Committee opened by asking the licensing officer for any additional 
information that had become available since the publication of the agenda. In response, the 
Licensing Officer informed the Sub-Committee that there had been no further updates. 
 
When asked by the Sub-Committee to outline their case, the applicant described their 
business as a hair salon. The reason for the application was that they would like to sell 
wine. Guests are offered a glass of wine as part of the hairdressing appointment, but this 
application covers the sale of that bottle to the customer if they would like to take it with 
them. There are a maximum of two guests in the premises at any one time, which allows 
greater regulation of the space, behaviour, alcohol consumption and loitering outside the 
premises. The applicant stated they did not wish to convert to a wine shop or any form of 
alcohol-led establishment. The off sale of alcohol was just an option, not the primary focus 
of business.  
 

Page 11



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

12 
 

When asked by the Sub-Committee whether they wanted to expand the offer to events or 
have more than two guests within the shop at any one time, the applicant responded that 
they did not.  
 
RESOLVED 

3) That the application for a new premises licence, in respect of Teto Studio, 6 Shillingford 
Street, London, N1 2DP, be granted to allow:- 

 
b) To allow the sale by retail of alcohol, on & off supplies, Mondays to Sundays from 

09:00 until 21:00 
 

4) That conditions outlined in appendix 3 and detailed on page 223 to 224 of the agenda 
be applied to the licence, with the additional condition as follows: the premises licence 
for the sale of alcohol is dependent on the operation of the premises as a hair salon. 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION 

The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 2 & 3.  The premises fall 
within the Angel and Upper Street cumulative impact area. Licensing policy 3 creates a 
rebuttable presumption that applications for the grant or variation of premises licences 
which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused following 
the receipt of representations, unless the applicant can demonstrate in the operating 
schedule that there will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing 
objectives. Licensing Policy 3.31-46, states that the area continues to feature as an alcohol-
related crime hotspot. However, Licensing Policy 3.48 provides an exception for premises 
submitting comprehensive operating schedules which are small premises with a capacity of 
no more than fifty persons, or premises which are not alcohol-led with appropriate hours.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 4.  The Council has adopted a 
special policy relating to cumulative impact in relation to shops and other premises selling 
alcohol for consumption off the premises.  Licensing policy 4 creates a rebuttable 
presumption that applications for the grant or variation of premises licences which are likely 
to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused or subject to certain 
limitations, following the receipt of representations, unless the applicant can demonstrate in 
the operating schedule that there will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of 
the licensing objectives. 
 
One local resident objection had been received, but the resident did not attend.  There had 
been no representations made by the responsible authorities and conditions had been 
agreed with the Police and the Noise team. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence that this was primarily a hairdressing salon. Each 
guest took one hour to complete a treatment and there are only two guests on the premises 
at any given time. Guests could be offered a glass of wine with their treatment. If they liked 
the wine, they could buy a bottle and take it away with them. There would be no drinking 
outside and alcohol would be provided to seated guests at a table or bench.  
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that there would be no negative impact on any of the 
licensing objectives. However, it was concerned to include a condition that the premises 
licence would be dependent on the use of the premises as a hair salon, in order to avoid 
any future problems. 

Page 12



Licensing Sub Committee D -  20 April 2023 

 

13 
 

 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that granting the premises licence was proportionate and 
appropriate to the promotion of the licensing objectives 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 10.09 pm 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15

Agenda Item B1



Metropolitan Police Yes - Conditions Suggested  

Noise No - Conditions Agreed 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: Five resident representations 

Other bodies No:  
 

2. Recommendations 
2.1. To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the 

Licensing Act 2003. 

2.2. This premises is located in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area therefore the 
Licensing Sub-Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states 
that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Sub-Committee is satisfied that 
there will be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 

2.3. The application form addresses the Cumulative Impact Area and Policy by 
suggesting a number of conditions in the Operating Schedule.  The applicants 
further endorse these conditions by accepting conditions suggested by the Police 
and Islington Council’s Noise Service.   

2.4. If the Licensing Sub-Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. Conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 
Operating Schedule (see appendix 5); and 

ii. Any conditions deemed appropriate by the Licensing Sub-Committee to promote 
the four licensing objectives. 

3. Background 

3.1 The application describes the premises as being a restaurant/take away.  
 

Page 16



3.2 The property already benefits from a premises. Licence, which has been in place at this 
property since 2006.  This licence is for the following;  

 
• The provision of late night refreshment from 23:00 until 02:00 Sunday to 

Thursday and from 23:00 until 03:00  
 

• No specified opening hours 
 

• The licence contains two out of date conditions 
 

3.3 Upon application, the applicant should have been advised of the existing licence and 
given assistance in making the application to transfer onto the licence.   
 

3.4 Discussions with the applicants have resulted in the business partner of the applicant 
making an application to transfer the existing licence into his name.  Note: This 
applicant would have made the application to transfer in his business name, however, is 
abroad at this time.  

 
3.5 The application received seven letters of representation from local residents.  These 

were found the Licensing Authority (LA), the Licensing Police and five residents local to 
the premises.  The representations from the LA and Police were based on policy.   

 
3.6 On receipt of the representations, the applicant wrote to the representors to advise 

them of the nature of the application.   
 

3.7 The applicant has accepted conditions requested with the Police and Islington’s Noise 
Service.   
 

4. Implications  
4.1. Financial Implications  

4.1.1. The Head of Finance reports that the applicant has paid the application fee of 
£190.00.  Should the application be refused, the fee is not refundable. 

4.2. Legal Implications  

4.2.1. The legal implications are set out in Paragraph 2. 

4.2.2. Legal advice will be provided at the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee as 
necessary. 

4.3. Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon 
Islington by 2030 

4.3.1. The Licensing Sub-Committee need to consider the impacts that the proposals will 
have on the environment.  An impact is defined as any change to the environment, Page 17



whether positive or negative, wholly or partially resulting from Council activities.  
Almost all human activity has some impact on the environment, and it is very 
unlikely that any activity will not have any implications. 

4.4. Equalities Impact Assessment 

4.4.1. The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of 
opportunity, and foster good relations, between those who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 
2010).  The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or 
minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in 
public life.  The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and 
promote understanding. 

4.4.2. An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required in relation to this report, because 
this is a decision relating to a Premises Licence application under the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

4.5. Planning implications 

4.5.1 The Planning and Development Section have the following comments in relation to the 
licence application.  

The property is not listed but is located within the St Luke’s Conservation Area. 

The ground floor and basement have been used since at least 1993 as a mixed 
restaurant and takeaway use since and this would be the lawful use.  

There are no planning conditions restricting opening hours  or any current planning 
enforcement cases relating to the property.  

5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

5.1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines this application. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: The application form; 
Appendix 2: Existing licence at the Premises; 
Appendix 3: Representations;  
Appendix 4: Applicants response to the representations; 
Appendix 5: Suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

Page 18



Report author: Licensing Service 
Tel: 020 75027 3031 
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



The Licensing Authority recommends that the Licensing Sub Committee consider the application and 

the lack of information in the operating schedule, bearing in mind that the premises could attract 

customers from late night drinking premises in the area, who may loiter rather than leave the area. 

Consider any resident’s representations, any conditions suggested by the Council’s Pollution Team 

and the Police and Islington Council’s Licensing Policy. 

 

Terrie Lane 

Licensing Manager 

Public Protection Division 

0207 527 3031 

licensing@islington.gov.uk 

 

09/08/2023 

Page 34



Abdullah Mohammedi 
Naar Food Ltd 
94 Old Street 
London EC1V 9AY 

Islington Police Licensing Team, 
Islington Police Station, 
2 Tolpuddle Street, 
London N1 0YY 

Our ref: WK/230018568 & 
NIH231760 

25th July 2023 

Dear Abdullah, 

PREMISES – NAAR , 94 OLD STREET , ISLINGTON , LONDON EC1V 9AY 

Thank you for your new Late Night Refreshment premises licence application 
regarding the above premises. I understand from Mahrous who I met with on Friday 
that your efforts to secure the old licence with the better than current framework 
hours are continuing. 

In the meantime please accept this e-mail as my initial representation for this 
application. 

To that end there are 8 conditions which I deem appropriate in the circumstances 
that I would expect to see included in your application for a late night refreshment 
licence for this premises. 

I would suggest that the current offerings in your application be ignored and be 
dispensed with and the following specified as replacements for the ones initially offered. 

These conditions should not affect the intended use or operating policy I believe and 
should be considered as good practice in line with police expectations and the 
Statement of Licensing Policy 2023-2028 as published by Islington Council on their 
own website if you aren’t already familiar with it. It is where you can find the current 
framework hours for late night refreshment licences also. 

1) CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the
premises is open for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following
criteria:
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure
that the system is working properly and that the date and time are correct.

Rep 2

Page 35



(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will 
be kept and made available to the police or other authorised officer on request; 
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one 
day of business for any reason; 
(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a 
clear, full length image of anyone entering; 
(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any 
exterior part of the premises accessible to the public; 
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped; 
(g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the 
premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised 
Council officers to view footage on request. 
(h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be 
provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject 
to the Data Protection Act 2018) within 24 hours of any request . 

(i) Signage stating that CCTV is in operation will be clearly and prominently displayed 
at the premises. 

(j) The use of CCTV at the premises shall be registered with the Information 
Commissioners Office [ICO]. 

2) A premises incident log or book shall be kept at the premises, and made 
available upon request to the police or an authorised officer, which will record: 

(a) Any and all allegations of crime and/or disorder reported at the venue; 
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party; 
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system; 
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service; 
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons; 
 
3) In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed 
on the premises, the management will immediately ensure that: 
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are 
called immediately; 
(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken 
to apprehend any identified suspects pending the arrival of the police; 
(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve 
any identified crime scene pending the arrival of the police. 
 
4) The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security. 
Such staff and security levels will be disclosed, on request, to the Licensing Authority 
and the Police. At all times that the premises is open to the public for the LNR hours 
there will be a minimum of 2 members of staff on duty. 

a/ The need for door supervisors will be assessed by way of risk assessment and 
cognisance will be taken of any police advice . 

5) The licensee shall ensure, as far as is safe and reasonably practicable to do, that 
all disorderly persons are not admitted, and if such persons do enter they are 
promptly removed from the premises. 
 
6) The licensee shall ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters , including 
the conditions of the premises licence, managing conflict and the health and safety of 
the public and staff and [if they are ever left in charge of the premises] the operation 
of the CCTV system and how to deal with visits from authorised officers. The 
licensee shall keep written records of training and instructions given to each member Page 36



of staff, detailing the areas covered to include the Licensing Objectives .Staff shall 
sign to confirm that they have received and understood the training. All staff who 
work at the premises will be trained for their role on induction and be given refresher 
training every six months. The written training records kept for each staff member will 
be produced to police & authorised council officers on request.  

7) The licensee shall maintain a fully equipped first aid kit on the premises at all times to 
which staff will have access. All staff shall be aware of its location and make it available 
for use as and when required. 

8) There shall be no motorised deliveries of take-away food or drink from the 
premises at any time. 
  
I hope that you are happy with the proposed conditions and the wordings given. 
  
I will be in liaison with your council licensing officer Carol Jones, who I have copied in 
so that they are aware of my visit and initial police representations and your intention 
to try and obtain the current licence in place at the premises where Mahrous has said 
you would likely be happy to incorporate police recommendations re updating and 
safeguarding if that could be achieved [they would be the same 8 conditions as 
above]. 
  
As currently this application is outside of framework hours and timings I think that 
Police would welcome you agreeing the conditions proposed [which I believe would 
be suitable for a framework hours new application] but may refer your application 
after that by way of objection to a Licensing Committee to determine the application 
having listened to your reasons and mitigations in person for being outside of the 
framework hours and the police view that this would increase the risk of crime and 
disorder. 
  
Please reply by e-mail with your agreement to these police initial representation 
should that be your wish once you have considered them and sought any advice or 
clarification that you wish. Please indicate in any e-mail if you are reducing the hours 
applied for. 
  
I would of course be very happy to discuss or clarify any queries or reservations you 
may have. 
  
I would also be happy to meet with you on site if required and speak personally with 
Mahrous if you are still abroad in Afghanistan. 
  
This application is obviously time sensitive so a prompt response would be 
appreciated. The date for last representations is 12/08/23. 
  
I look forward to your response. 
  
Kind Regards, 
  
Tim 

Tim Livermore| Constable | Islington Borough – Licensing Team 

Address Islington Police Station, 2 Tolpuddle Street , Islington , London N1 0YY 

T07721444695 and Email Tim.J.Livermore@met.police.uk  

 Page 37



Rep 3 
 
From: REDACTED  
Sent: 06 August 2023 15:32 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Naar, 94 Old Street EC1 Objection to planning application. 
 
To whom it may concern. 
  
I would like to object to the application above.  
  
In terms of antisocial behavior, particularly late at night, we have a constant 
procession in the street of people leaving local licensed premises causing significant 
noise disturbance, leaving litter and in some cases, I behave in a very aggressive 
manner so that I myself tend to avoid being out of the house beyond 11 pm if 
possible. Most of our problems in the street are caused late at night and the hours of 
opening of these premises should not be extended. They should not be later than 
22.30pm Monday to Saturday.   
The proposed hours would allow even more people to be coming onto the street 
after 00.00 on Friday and Saturday, which are largely the worst nights of the week 
and would attract drinkers who have already been in public houses and who 
congregate in the churchyard at St Lukes. 
  
Currently due to cost savings by Islington the Church yard and garden of St Lukes, 
directly opposite these premises on Old Street has become a stopping off point for 
drunks and drug takers from after the pubs and clubs close. Groups of men who are 
aggressive and shouting. Most weekends from 4 am - sometimes 7 am Groups 
drinking and taking drugs, playing music, smashing glasses has become a terrible 
problem. I myself have had to call the police and I understand the venue applying for 
this licence has also had to call the police due to trouble from people in the church 
yard. I have also written to my local councillor without luck so far. 
This is intimidating and depressing.  I would not dream of leaving the house in 
the early hours to walk my dog or to jog. I cannot walk my dog early anymore as the 
left over bottles and food and gas canisters are strewn everywhere. See attached 
photos from this weekend only. 
There is already a high level of disorder on the street late at night particularly on 
Friday and Saturday nights. People who are drunk or well on the way to it all too 
often pass by making considerable disturbance and being quite aggressive 
particularly after the pubs close.  
The free availability of alcohol at late night clearly encourages this. The 24 hour off 
licence is clearly selling alcohol to people who are already drunk in contravention of 
their licence. 
 
The prevention of public nuisance. 
I have already described the type of public nuisance in terms of noise and behavior 
we regularly have particularly on Friday and Saturday nights up to and beyond 
midnight. How families with children in, for example, Coltash Court can get them to 
sleep before midnight or later on any nights in the week except Sunday I do not 
know. 
Turning these premises into an early morning opening venue, Friday and Saturdays 

Page 38



cannot fail to magnify this problem. It will just add to the problems by drawing in 
customers who have to leave the pubs and clubs. 
 
Public safety - protection of children from harm 
 
The public safety considerations are self-evident from the situation late in the 
evenings that I have described. This is an area already saturated with licensed 
premises supplying, adding the availability of food would just mean them hanging 
around longer and throwing the rubbish from the food everywhere. 
Children may very well be harmed by the remains of the drug taking and the broken 
glass strewn everywhere. 
The venue itself is guilty of leaving loads of boxes and bags of rubbish outside their 
own premises. They also have tables and chairs outside their premises without a 
license to do so.  They are hardly the best to encourage good behaviour from their 
customers since they do not comply themselves. 
  
Regards 
REDACTED 
 
 
Rep 4 
 
From: REDACTED  
Sent: 12 August 2023 23:16 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Licence Application - Naar, 94 Old Street, EC1V 9AY 
 
Hi there, 
 
Please find below my comments about this application: 
 
Your reference: WK/230018568 
 
Name: REDACTED 
Interest: Resident 
Address: REDACTED 
 
I think that extending the opening hours - especially until 3am at weekends - would 
contribute to increased levels of disorder and public nuisance. With the current opening 
hours, the restaurant already attracts a certain amount of intoxicated and often noisy late-
night customers. There can be groups of people loudly talking, or shouting, as customers 
loiter outside in the street, and across the road in the church garden (which is currently left 
open all night). I moved in here knowing that the restaurant is there, and I made myself 
aware of the current opening hours before moving in, and accepted them as a part of living 
in a Central London location. I also understand of course that people on their way home 
from a night out are part of Naar's customer base. But I have had to start wearing earplugs 
for sleeping to reduce the noise, and despite that I am still regularly woken up by Naar's 
customers. However, a 3am closing time at weekends would very likely attract customers 
who are (generally speaking) even more intoxicated and/or rowdy and it would encourage 

Page 39



people on a night out in nearby Shoreditch to pass this way, once word gets around about 
the 3am opening. I believe this would have a cumulative impact. There are many residential 
units above the restaurant and in the surrounding buildings that are likely to be affected by 
extended opening hours. Being woken up occasionally late in the evening affects local 
residents’ quality of life much less than potentially being woken up repeatedly until 3am in 
the morning. 
 
I would prefer to remain anonymous, as the entrance to my building is REDACTED to the 
restaurant, and with my full address and with my unusual surname, I could easily be 
identified, which makes me anxious about any tensions or awkwardness. Should that not be 
possible, I would ask that you at least consider publishing my comments without my flat 
number. 
 
Best wishes, 
REDACTED 
Tel: REDACTED 
 
 
Rep 5 
 
From: REDACTED 
Sent: 15 August 2023 17:44 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objection - Licensing Application 
 
Hello,  
 
I hope you are well. 
 
It has been brought to my attention that a business owner has applied for opening hour extension 
and also a license to sell alcohol. 
 
The business is: 
Naar Lebanese takeaway 
92 Old Street, EC1V 9AY 
 
I live in REDACTED and my window is REDACTED. We are also facing St Luke’s church 
and the park, which remains open during the night.  
 
There is already asbo throughout the night; urinating, drinking, drugs, shouting, that keep us 
up many nights. 
 
I haven’t been able to locate the form to document my objection. Would you be able to 
forward the form to me or record my objection using the contents of this email? 
 
I’d be grateful if you could help me. 
 
Kind regards, 
REDACTED 
REDACTED 
Phone: REDACTED  

Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



 

 

w  

Licensing Service 
LB of Islington 
222 Upper Street 
London N1 1YA 

11th August 2023 

Dear Sirs 

Your ref: WK/230018568 

LICENSING ACT 2003 NEW PREMISES APPLICATION 
RE: NAAR, BASEMENT AND GROUND FLOOR, 94 OLD STREET 
 LONDON EC1V 9AY 

OBJECTION from  

1 This objection is to the proposed application for late night refreshment 
beyond midnight on Friday and Saturday. My wife and I together own 
the freehold of the whole building at  including 
the  . Between us we have lived here since 1993. 
We have known the applicant premises for all that time and have not 
had too much of a problem with their customers arriving and causing 
some noise disturbance by parking outside our flat to get a takeaway 
from them, up to their present closing time of midnight. Extending 
their hours to 3am on Saturday and Sunday mornings would be a 
considerable problem for us. 

Effect of the proposed development on public nuisance and disorder 

Rep 7

Page 43



2  and the other residential premises at this end of Whitecross Street 
are particularly affected by any noise nuisance. Whitecross Street is 
narrow at this point and noise is reflected off the sides of the buildings 
and amplified. This means, for example, that it is possible to hear 
conversations in the street even when conducted at normal level. One 
of the main problems is people arriving by car and parking, making a 
noise, slamming car doors, car radio playing loudly etc. to go for a 
short period into Old Street as well as people on foot for the same 
purpose.  
 

3 The near presence of Old Street a few yards away, also brings with it 
similar noise disturbance of people walking along the road and 
crossing on the light controlled crossing opposite St Luke’s, in the 
gardens outside St Luke’s and of course, traffic noise including people 
arriving or leaving and temporarily parking vehicles in our street or on 
Old Street, to visit commercial premises particularly late at night. Until 
our current problems with respect to the use of St Luke’s gardens by 
people causing disturbance during the night including drunks and drug 
takers, this would at least tail off after the local licensed premises cafes 
and restaurants in our street and nearby on Old Street closed at 11 pm 
and the applicant’s premises closed at midnight.  
 

4 For this reason, we and our neighbours have always opposed the 
opening hours of nearby café’s and restaurants going beyond pub 
hours and late on Sundays, so as to prevent them being a draw to 
customers, particularly those who have consumed alcohol, later at 
night and after the pubs close, thus continuing the public nuisance and 
disorder that this can cause. See in particular over the last few years, 
the applications of Elite Café in Whitecross Street and the Korean 
restaurant to our flat. 

 
5 Clearly, we do not want to lose this benefit after midnight by the 

introduction of a new attraction of noise nuisance in the vicinity which 
could go on till 3 in the morning on Saturday and Sunday. Late night 
refreshment till 3 am is obviously going to attract people to come 
either on foot or by car, after normal restaurants and cafes and pubs 
have closed when otherwise there would be much reduced footfall and 
traffic. These people, many of whom will have taken alcohol, are very 

Page 44



likely to cause disturbance to us particularly from the arrival and 
departure of vehicles as well as on foot.  

 
6 The applicants have stated to a neighbor, that they will close the 

seating in the premises and operate as a takeaway after 11pm but this 
will obviously have no effect on the likely nuisance that attendance at 
their premises will cause after midnight. 

 
7 Also, we do have some respite from all these problems, other than that 

described in the next paragraph, on Sundays from midnight Saturday 
as few licensed premises around us are open on a Sunday. We would 
like to keep it that way as far as possible. 

 
8 Further, we now and for some time have had a public order and 

public nuisance problem coming from the gardens at the front of the 
restored St Luke’s’, right opposite the applicant premises and ours as a 
result of the gardens no longer being cleared of people and locked 
overnight by Islington Council. We now have people regularly causing 
a disturbance through the night and into the early hours of the 
morning playing music and shouting etc. including drunks and drug 
addicts and the use of nitrous oxide gas every night of the week. The 
police seem to be often in attendance. Our next-door neighbor had to 
call them at 4.30am only recently.  

 
9 The noise is a disturbance to ours and neighbours’ premises and 

disturbing to sleep. We cannot avoid it even by using a back bedroom. 
These people seem to be getting their alcohol throughout the night 
from the Lodos Supermarket at 89/91 Old Street. Late night takeaway 
to 3 am on Saturdays and Sundays will potentially serve and encourage 
these people and/or attract even more as well as attracting people from 
other venues, clubs and pubs, to come to this part of Old Street in the 
early hours by car and on foot. Ours is perhaps surprisingly, a very 
residential area. Most of the buildings around us contain flats and 
residential accommodation, which would be affected. 

 
Prevention of crime and public safety 
 

Page 45



10.  Crime in our area has risen a great deal over the last few years. We 
often hear disturbances late at night such that we avoid going out of 
the premises after 11pm. Only a few weeks ago our son (no longer a 
child) went out to the supermarket across Old Street at about 11pm 
and had to witness a vicious attack by a group of men on a passing 
cyclist. One of the few things that can help to prevent this sort of 
behavior is to make sure that there is nothing in the area to attract 
people to come here very late at night and in the early hours of the 
morning. 

  
Protection of children from harm 
 
11. We know from attending other application hearings over the years 

that the flats adjacent to St Luke’s and opposite the applicant 
premises contain many families with young children. The is a real 
concern here for an activity that would draw people to this part of 
Old Street in the early hours of the morning and which as stated 
above is bound to cause noise and disturbance. Putting up with this 
till midnight when most premises have closed is one thing but 
continuing to 3 am is a different matter. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

11th August 2023 
 

Page 46



From: Abdullah Mohammedi 
Sent: 23 August 2023 15:18 
To: Jones, Carol <Carol.Jones@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Naar Lebanese  

Dear Resident,  

I have been forwarded copies of your representation to my application for a new premises licence. 

I think I have met some of you, as you have come into my premises to speak with me or my business 
partner.  If you have not been in to talk to us, please do, as we would be very happy to talk to you 
and explain our business to you.  

In April the Police came in and explained we needed to have a licence for operating at this 
premises.  We thought there was a licence in place, but did not realise at that time that it needed to 
be in our name.  We contacted the Council and made a new application.  We misunderstood the 
Police officer and thought we needed to have our own licence, so we made this application.   Please 
note, the licence is not for alcohol, only for food.  We plan to allow people to eat inside our premises 
until 11pm and then operate ‘Take-away’ only.   

We will be very mindful of the residents and not let our customers make any noise to disturb 
you.  We are also concerned and are being disturbed by the people who sit in the park opposite with 
music and drinks.  So far, they have not come to us for food, we are concerned in case they 
do.  Carol Jones from the Council advises she has contacted the Parks Team in the Council to ask 
them to lock the gates at night.  If the gates were locked, I think it would solve the nuisance, as they 
wouldn’t be able to sit there anymore.  

We have been operating Late Night Refreshment premises across London for many years now and 
hope we have not caused a nuisance to you while we have been at 94 Old Street.  We understand 
your concern, but I have been speaking to the Council and now understand that the licence in place 
at this premises is for later hours during the week, than the hours we have asked for and does not 
contain any conditions.   We have also accepted the conditions from the Police and Council, see 
below;  

Conditions proposed by the Licensing Police 

1) CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is open
for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is
working properly and that the date and time are correct.
(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept and
made available to the police or other authorised officer on request;
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of business
for any reason;
(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length
image of anyone entering;
(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the
premises accessible to the public;
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped;

Appendix 4

Page 47



(g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the premises who 
can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on 
request. 
(h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free 
of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject to the Data Protection Act 
2018) within 24 hours of any request. 
(i) Signage stating that CCTV is in operation will be clearly and prominently displayed at the 
premises. 
(j) The use of CCTV at the premises shall be registered with the Information Commissioners Office 
[ICO]. 
 
2) A premises incident log or book shall be kept at the premises, and made available upon request to 
the police or an authorised officer, which will record: 
(a) Any and all allegations of crime and/or disorder reported at the venue; 
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party; 
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system; 
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service; 
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons; 
 
3) In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the 
premises, the management will immediately ensure that: 
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately; 
(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any 
identified suspects pending the arrival of the police; 
(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any identified 
crime scene pending the arrival of the police. 
 
4) The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security. Such staff and 
security levels will be disclosed, on request, to the Licensing Authority and the Police. At all times 
that the premises is open to the public for the LNR hours there will be a minimum of 2 members of 
staff on duty. 
a/ The need for door supervisors will be assessed by way of risk assessment and cognisance will be 
taken of any police advice . 
 
5) The licensee shall ensure, as far as is safe and reasonably practicable to do, that all disorderly 
persons are not admitted, and if such persons do enter they are promptly removed from the 
premises. 
 
6) The licensee shall ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters, including the conditions of 
the premises licence, managing conflict and the health and safety of the public and staff and [if they 
are ever left in charge of the premises] the operation of the CCTV system and how to deal with visits 
from authorised officers. The licensee shall keep written records of training and instructions given to 
each member of staff, detailing the areas covered to include the Licensing Objectives .Staff shall sign 
to confirm that they have received and understood the training. All staff who work at the premises 
will be trained for their role on induction and be given refresher training every six months. The 
written training records kept for each staff member will be produced to police & authorised council 
officers on request. 
 
7) The licensee shall maintain a fully equipped first aid kit on the premises at all times to which staff 
will have access. All staff shall be aware of its location and make it available for use as and when 
required. 

Page 48



 

Conditions proposed by Islington’s Noise Team 

 
1. Noise, vibration or odours must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to 

nearby properties. 
 
2. In the event of a noise/ odour nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the 

licensee shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence. 
 

3. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting the public to 
respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 

 
4. The delivery of licensable goods to the premises shall be restricted to the hours between 

07:00 and 23:00 Monday-Saturday. No deliveries of licensable goods to the premises shall be 
made on a Sunday or Bank Holiday. 

 
5. The collection of refuse shall be restricted to the hours between 07:00 and 23:00 Monday-

Saturday. No waste collections shall be made on a Sunday or Bank Holiday. 
 

6. The outside frontage shall be swept and cleared of any rubbish and smoking litter associated 
with the business towards the end of trade each evening. 

 
7. Any music shall be restricted to ambient background levels of sound. 

 
8. The shutters to the front of the premises shall be maintained so as not to cause a noise 

nuisance when in operation to residential properties in close vicinity 
 

9. There shall be no more than 5 customers outside the venue smoking.  
 

10. The licensee shall practice best endeavours to ensure that no internal combustion engine 
vehicles are used for deliveries from the premises. 

 
11. If internal combustion engine vehicles are used for deliveries from the premises, the licensee 

shall ensure that drivers do not park or loiter in the vicinity of residential premises. 
 

12. The premises will operate a no idling policy for delivery drivers. 
 

13. Delivery drivers will conduct the delivery in a manner that will not cause a noise disturbance 
to the occupiers of any residential properties surrounding the delivery address. 

 
Please contact us if you would like to meet with us to talk about our application and business.  
 
Kind regards, 
Abdullah Mohammedi  
 

Page 49



Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule     Appendix 5  

All suggested conditions in the application have been re-worded by the Police and Noise Team 
 
Conditions proposed by the Licensing Police – Agreed 

1) CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is open for 
licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria: 
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is 
working properly and that the date and time are correct. 
(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept and made 
available to the police or other authorised officer on request; 
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of business for 
any reason; 
(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length 
image of anyone entering; 
(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the 
premises accessible to the public; 
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped; 
(g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the premises who can 
operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on request. 
(h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free of 
charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject to the Data Protection Act 2018) 
within 24 hours of any request. 
(i) Signage stating that CCTV is in operation will be clearly and prominently displayed at the premises. 
(j) The use of CCTV at the premises shall be registered with the Information Commissioners Office 
[ICO]. 
 
2) A premises incident log or book shall be kept at the premises, and made available upon request to the 
police or an authorised officer, which will record: 
(a) Any and all allegations of crime and/or disorder reported at the venue; 
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party; 
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system; 
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service; 
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons; 
 
3) In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the premises, 
the management will immediately ensure that: 
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately; 
(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any identified 
suspects pending the arrival of the police; 
(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any identified 
crime scene pending the arrival of the police. 
 
4) The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security. Such staff and 
security levels will be disclosed, on request, to the Licensing Authority and the Police. At all times that 
the premises is open to the public for the LNR hours there will be a minimum of 2 members of staff on 
duty. 
a/ The need for door supervisors will be assessed by way of risk assessment and cognisance will be 
taken of any police advice . 
 
5) The licensee shall ensure, as far as is safe and reasonably practicable to do, that all disorderly 
persons are not admitted, and if such persons do enter they are promptly removed from the premises. 
 Page 50



6) The licensee shall ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters, including the conditions of the 
premises licence, managing conflict and the health and safety of the public and staff and [if they are ever 
left in charge of the premises] the operation of the CCTV system and how to deal with visits from 
authorised officers. The licensee shall keep written records of training and instructions given to each 
member of staff, detailing the areas covered to include the Licensing Objectives .Staff shall sign to 
confirm that they have received and understood the training. All staff who work at the premises will be 
trained for their role on induction and be given refresher training every six months. The written training 
records kept for each staff member will be produced to police & authorised council officers on request. 
 
7) The licensee shall maintain a fully equipped first aid kit on the premises at all times to which staff will 
have access. All staff shall be aware of its location and make it available for use as and when required. 
 

Conditions proposed by Islington’s Noise Team- Agreed  

 
1. Noise, vibration or odours must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to 

nearby properties. 
 
2. In the event of a noise/ odour nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the 

licensee shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence. 
 

3. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting the public to respect 
the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 

 
4. The delivery of licensable goods to the premises shall be restricted to the hours between 07:00 

and 23:00 Monday-Saturday. No deliveries of licensable goods to the premises shall be made on a 
Sunday or Bank Holiday. 

 
5. The collection of refuse shall be restricted to the hours between 07:00 and 23:00 Monday-

Saturday. No waste collections shall be made on a Sunday or Bank Holiday. 
 

6. The outside frontage shall be swept and cleared of any rubbish and smoking litter associated with 
the business towards the end of trade each evening. 

 
7. Any music shall be restricted to ambient background levels of sound. 

 
8. The shutters to the front of the premises shall be maintained so as not to cause a noise nuisance 

when in operation to residential properties in close vicinity 
 

9. There shall be no more than 5 customers outside the venue smoking.  
 

10. The licensee shall practice best endeavours to ensure that no internal combustion engine vehicles 
are used for deliveries from the premises. 

 
11. If internal combustion engine vehicles are used for deliveries from the premises, the licensee shall 

ensure that drivers do not park or loiter in the vicinity of residential premises. 
 

12. The premises will operate a no idling policy for delivery drivers. 
 

13. Delivery drivers will conduct the delivery in a manner that will not cause a noise disturbance to the 
occupiers of any residential properties surrounding the delivery address. 

 
Page 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 55

Agenda Item B2



Noise No - Conditions Agreed 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: Six resident representations 

Other bodies No:  
 

2. Recommendations 
2.1. To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the 

Licensing Act 2003. 

2.2. This premises is located in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area therefore the 
Licensing Sub-Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states 
that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Sub-Committee is satisfied that 
there will be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 

2.3. The application form addresses the Cumulative Impact Area and Policy by 
suggesting a number of conditions in the Operating Schedule.  The applicants 
further endorse these conditions by accepting conditions suggested by the Police 
and Islington Council’s Noise Service.   

2.4. If the Licensing Sub-Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. Conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 
Operating Schedule (see appendix 4); and 

ii. Any conditions deemed appropriate by the Licensing Sub-Committee to promote 
the four licensing objectives. 

3. Background 

3.1 The application describes the premises as being a Café/Restaurant. 
 

3.2 Since 2017, the premises have been applying for TEN’s if they wanted to provide any 
licensable activities.  I confirm, none of these TEN’s resulted in any noise complaints.  Page 56



 
3.3 The application received six letters of representation from local residents.   

 
3.4 On receipt of the representations, the applicant wrote to the representors to advise 

them of the nature of the application.   
 

3.5 The applicant has accepted conditions requested with the Police and Islington’s Noise 
Service.   

 
 

4. Implications  
4.1. Financial Implications  

4.1.1. The Head of Finance reports that the applicant has paid the application fee of 
£190.00.  Should the application be refused, the fee is not refundable. 

4.2. Legal Implications  

4.2.1. The legal implications are set out in Paragraph 2. 

4.2.2. Legal advice will be provided at the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee as 
necessary. 

4.3. Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon 
Islington by 2030 

4.3.1. The Licensing Sub-Committee need to consider the impacts that the proposals will 
have on the environment.  An impact is defined as any change to the environment, 
whether positive or negative, wholly or partially resulting from Council activities.  
Almost all human activity has some impact on the environment, and it is very 
unlikely that any activity will not have any implications. 

4.4. Equalities Impact Assessment 

4.4.1. The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of 
opportunity, and foster good relations, between those who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 
2010).  The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or 
minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in 
public life.  The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and 
promote understanding. 

Page 57



4.4.2. An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required in relation to this report, because 
this is a decision relating to a Premises Licence application under the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

4.5. Planning implications 

4.5.1 The Planning department advised the property is not statutorily listed, nor is it located 
within a Conservation Area.   

The last known lawful use of the property was A1 retail, with ancillary storage to the first 
floor.  Planning permission was previously refused, in 2012, for the change of use to an 
A3 café/restaurant; however, due to changes to the Use Class Order, the old A1 retail 
and A3 café/restaurant uses now sit within Class E - Commercial, Business and Service.   

The current use of the property is therefore lawfully considered to be Class E(b) – Sale of 
food and drink for consumption (mostly) on the premises. 

There is no relevant planning history for this site, nor conditions relating to hours of 
operation and no ‘live’ planning enforcement cases open for this site. 
 

5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

5.1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines this application. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: The application form; 
Appendix 2: Representations  
Appendix 3: Applicants response to the representations 
Appendix 4: Suggested conditions and map of premises location 

Report author: Licensing Service 
Tel: 020 75027 3031 
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 58



1 

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

Please read the following instructions first 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you 
are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases 
ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional 
sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I/We JIMMY AND THE BEE LTD
 (Insert name(s) of applicant) 

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the 
premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this 
application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 
of the Licensing Act 2003 

Part 1 – Premises details 

JIMMY AND THE BEE CAFÉ//RESTAURANT 

135 Goswell Rd.

Post town LONDON Postcode  EC1V 7JY 

Telephone number at premises (if 
any) 
Non-domestic rateable value of 
premises 

£ 

Part 2 - Applicant details 

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as 
appropriate 

a) an individual or individuals * please complete section (A) 

b) a person other than an individual * 

i as a limited company/limited liability 
partnership 

X please complete section (B) 

ii as a partnership (other than limited 
liability) 

please complete section (B) 

iii as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B) 

iv other (for example a statutory 
corporation) 

please complete section (B) 

Appendix 1

Page 59



2 

 

c) a recognised club  please complete section (B) 

d) a charity  please complete section (B) 

e) the proprietor of an educational 
establishment 

 please complete section (B) 

f) a health service body  please complete section (B) 

g) 
 
 
 
ga) 
 

a person who is registered under Part 2 of 
the Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in 
respect of an independent hospital in Wales 
 
a person who is registered under Chapter 2 
of Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 
2008 (within the meaning of that Part) in an 
independent hospital in England 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
please complete section (B) 
 
 
please complete section (B) 

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in 
England and Wales 

 please complete section (B) 

 
* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes 
to one box below):     

 

 I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the 
use of the premises for licensable activities; or  YES 

 

 I am making the application pursuant to a statutory function or a function 
discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative 

 

  

     

 
(A) individual applicants (fill in as applicable) 
 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 
      

 

Surname 
      

First names 

      

Date of birth                                   I am 18 years old or over   Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current residential 
address if different 
from premises 
address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone 
number 

      

E-mail address 
(optional) 

      

Page 60



3 

 

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to 
work checking service), the ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service 
(please see note 15 for information) 
 
           

 

 

Second individual applicant (if applicable) 
 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms   
 

Other Title 
(for example, 
Rev) 

      
 

Surname 
      

First names 
      

Date of birth                                 I am 18 years old 
or over 

 Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current residential 
address if different 
from premises 
address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone 
number 

      

E-mail address 
(optional) 

      

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to 
work checking service), the ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: 
(please see note 15 for information) 
 
 
 

 

 

(B) Other applicants 

 
Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where 
appropriate please give any registered number.  In the case of a partnership or 
other joint venture (other than a body corporate), please give the name and 
address of each party concerned. 
 

Name 
     JIMMY & THE BEE LTD 

Page 61



4 

 

Address 
  
  135 Goswell Road, London EC1V7JY   

Registered number (where applicable) 
     

  

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated 
association etc.) 
      
PRIVATE LIMITED COMPANY 

Telephone number (if any)  
      

E-mail address (optional) 
      

 
Part 3 Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start? 
DD MM YYYY 
 
1  

 
1  

 
0  

 
8  

 
2  

 
0  

 
2  

 
3  

 

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, 
when do you want it to end? 

DD MM YYYY 
                

 

 
 

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1) 
    
 
THE PREMISES IS CURRENTLY A CAFÉ/RESTAURANT. 

 
If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises 
at any one time, please state the number expected to attend. 

      
 

 
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 
 
(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 
 

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 
2)         

Please tick all 
that apply 

Page 62



5 

 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)  

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)  

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)  

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)  

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or 
(g)  
(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 

 

 

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)   

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J) X 

 
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M 

Page 63



Page 64



16 

 

Issuing licensing authority (if known)  

      

 
 
 

K 
 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other 
entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise 
to concern in respect of children (please read guidance note 9). 
      

 

L 
 

Hours premises are 
open to the public 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 
5) 
      

Day Start 
Finis
h 

Mon   
07:00   

  
23:00   

            

Tue   
07:00   

  
23:00   

            

Wed   
07:00   

  
23:00   

            Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to 
be open to the public at different times from those listed 
in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 6) 
      

Thur   
07:00   

  
23:00   

            

Fri    
07:00  

  
00:00   

            

Page 65



17 

Sat 
07:00 00:00 

Sun 
07:00 23:00 

M

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note
10)

The applicant will accept the following conditions. 

The alcohol only will sale in operation hours and the alcohol will be consumed  ON the 

premises. Cctv will be installed to the premises, installed the cctv system that meet the standard 

in 'Uk police requirements for digital cctv system'. The premises operates the "challenge 25" 

the proof of age scheme. The premises will open and shut at its permitted hours and the sale of 

alcohol or any other permitted licensing activity will not be carried out at any other time than 

its permitted opening hours. The premises shall install and maintain a CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of a Police Crime Prevention Officer. All entry and exit points will be 

covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The 

CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and 

during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a 

minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall be made available 

immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day 

period. THE CCTV SHALL BE IN OPERATION AT ALL THE PREMISES ARE OPEN TO 

THE PUBLIC. A MEMBER OF STAFF CAPABLE OF DOWNLOADING IMAGES FOR 

THE POLICE OR AUTHORISED COUNCIL OFFICERS SHALL BE ON DUTY AT ALL 

TIMES THE PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.      

NOTICES WILL BE DISPLAYED ADVISING CUSTOMERS OF THE PERMITTED 

HOURS.  

ALL STAFF WILL BE TRAINED FOR THEIR ROLE ON INDUCTION AND AT 

REGULAR INTERVALS OF SIX MONTHS THEREAFTER. TRAINING WILL INCLUDE 

IDENTIFYING PERSONS UNDER 25, MAKING A CHALLENGE, ACCEPTABLE PROOF 

OF AGE, MAKING AND RECORDING A REFUSAL, AVOIDING CONFLICT AND 

RESPONSIBLE ALCOHOL RETAILING.  

WRITTEN TRAINING RECORDS WILL BE KEPT. 

THE PREMISES WILL ACTIVELY ENGAGE WITH AND WORK WITH THE POLICE 

SAFER NEIGHBOURGHOOD TEAM. 

the premises will keep strong management controls and train all staff so they are aware of the 

licence and its requirement. 

In particular: 

No service of alcohol to underage people.    

Being vigilant  to prevent  disorderly behavior.   

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Rep 1 

From: REDACTED 
Sent: 08 August 2023 14:26 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk>; REDACTED; REDACTED 
Subject: Application made for café premises on the corner of Cyrus Street Goswell Road Jimmy 

Dear Sirs, 

We have taken on board and agree with REDACTED and other residents on The Triangle 
Estate, as stated there are three other premises that sell alcohol, the area has been totally 
neglected in so many ways by LBI and ignored by them and the police.  It appears that it might 
be convenient for the problems within this area to be concentrated on one estate as it has 
been for both LBI and police for so many years. 

We have taken on board and agree with REDACTED, REDACTED and other residents on The 
Triangle Estate, as stated there are three other premises that sell alcohol, the area has been 
totally neglected in so many ways by LBI and ignored by them and the police.  It appears that 
it might be convenient for the problems within this area to be concentrated on one estate as 
it has been for both LBI and police for so many years. 

There is no security on The Triangle, or no attempt on to implement any security, any duties 
that would reduce the oh so many attacks, anti social, sleeping on the estate, drinking, 
screaming and  the urinating all aided by the fact there is no security. 

The entrance to the garages has not had lock on for more than six months, the garages are a 
danger due to the fact they are piled ( that is from back to front of a good 15ft ) with rubbish 

We have always hoped (albeit, thus far, not ever been helped) that LBI in all its departments 
would never been accredited with carrying out duties of any degree of basic cover of 
acceptability to their implied duties. 

The addition of lights on the podium is no degree of cover LBI officers backs as action taken; in 
comparison with all the other estates 

If the council has a quota before complaints with regard to this licensing application, are there 
any measures/laws with regard to the proximity to licensing premises, and if so, what are 
these. 

REDACTED 
Our address is REDACTED 

Rep 2 

From: REDACTED REDACTED 
Date: 8 August 2023 at 19:07:24 BST 
To: licencing@islington.gov.uk 

Appendix 2

Page 70



Cc REDACTED; REDACTED 

Subject: Proposed alcohol licence for jimmy and the bee c/o Goswell road and Cyrus street 
I learned today for the first time about the above application. I am amazed that this is being 
considered. There is so much anti social behaviour in and around this estate already and another 
alcohol outlet can only make it worse  

We are one of the very few estates locally that has no security at all. We will be at the mercy of those 
that behave badly when drunk.   The council has never addressed any of our requests for some 
security and yet even more problems are bound to follow easier access to alcohol. We have lived here 
since the estate was built and never had any of our concerns addressed. The council seems to have no 
interest whatsoever in our welfare.  

REDACTED 
REDACTED 

Rep 3 

From: REDACTED  
Sent: 03 August 2023 09:54 
To: Licensing Licensing@islington.gov.uk 

Subject: Licensing of Jimmy & the Bee, 135 Goswell road, Islington, London, EC1V 7JY 

Hello,   

Thank you for the letter.   

My name is REDACTED I live as a long term tenant at REDACTED and I can see the subject place from 
my kitchen window.   

The concern I have is that the Jimmy & the Bee (J&B) can become the same as the one we already 
have in the area. Just about a hundred meters from the Jimmy & the Bee location down Goswell 
road towards Old Street we have "The Old Ivy" which after the new management of the place came 
(they announced that a few months ago I believe), there is constant noise from loud music and 
drunk people singing and yelling until late night (even after 23:30 on some occasions).   

It is hard to fall asleep even with closed windows due to the long lasting noise at night and I would 
not be ok with another place nearby causing loud noise as well. Just to clarify, if I could, I would ask 
for ''The Old Ivy'' to be also better regulated in terms of working hours and noise due to the 
residential area these 2 subject places are within.  

The proposed working hours of the J&B are also way out of line for a residential area.  
During the week (when everyone has to go early to sleep and rest for the next working day 
tomorrow) until 22:00 will be fine, after that will be too much. On Friday night I would not mind 
22:30 - 23:00 but only on Friday. There are plenty of homes nearby that will be affected by the 
potential extra noise and I believe that must be taken heavily into account for the decision.  

Page 71



I have seen some places have the policy to ask all clients to go away from the coffee/pub place once 
they close for the day/night, which is good as this way it does not cause unnecessary discomfort for 
the nearby residents. And this would be a nice condition in case the license is granted to J&B in the 
future. This way, possibly drunk or loud people can move away from our area and not cause issues 
with the well being, sleep and comfort of residents.  

Thank you. 

REDACTED 
Email: REDACTED  
My mobile phone to contact me is: REDACTED 

Rep 4 

From: REDACTED  
Sent: 09 August 2023 13:05 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Licensing Act 2003 - Premises Licence Application New - Jimmy & The Bee 135 Goswell Road 
EC1V 7JY 

I wish to object to the above application for a new licence relating to the sale of alcohol 7 days a 
week between 7am and 10.30pm or 11.30pm depending on the day of the week. 

I live at REDACTED, so I am directly REDACTED these premises. 

I am objecting on the grounds of the prevention of public nuisance and prevention of crime and 
disorder. 

My objections relate to the following issues: 

- within the recent past, I cannot recall exactly, the premises hosted what I assume was a private
event in the evening. The noise was disturbing as the premises are not that large so everyone
congregated on the outside area. The fact there is an outside area rather that it being the pavement
will no doubt encourage groups hanging around outside, being noisy and more worryingly, smoking.
During this event I was unable to have my windows open, due to the noise and the fact smoke was
rising and coming in through my open windows, directly impacting negatively my ability to enjoy my
own home

- I am concerned that the noise levels will prevent me from having quiet enjoyment of my home. As
indicated, the premises are not that large inside so it is likely that patrons will congregate in the
outside space and I will have to have my windows closed in the evenings permanently

- these premises are currently a coffee shop and you can have a bite to eat, open during the day,
never that busy, but generally quiet and not impacting on my quiet enjoyment of my property. I do
not understand why a coffee shop needs an alcohol licence. In addition, I do not think the premises
can support the provision of food in quantity, so patrons will just be drinking alcohol, likely getting
more drunk and disrupting the area. This completely contradicts the way the coffee shop impacts.
The coffee shop enhances the area whereas a bar will detract

Page 72



- I am also concerned about the possibility of music not needing a licence disturbing my quiet 
enjoyment, especially as the premises have large floor to ceiling sliding or opening doors on both 
sides to the premises, which can be completely open, with a large congregating outside space 
encouraging patrons to use the outside as an extension of the inside. In these circumstances this 
applies not just to music, but the noise of patrons drinking and using the outside space as an 
automatic extension of the inside space 
 
- I am also concerned about the use and sale of drugs. I have lived in my flat since 2014 and I know 
that drug dealing goes on around The Triangle and have occasionally witnessed it. I believe that a bar 
here will likely lead to more traffic of people and drugs in the immediate environs, to the detriment 
of me being able to move freely around my home and coming and going from my flat especially in 
the evenings and at night. I am also a woman who lives alone and I am very concerned about having 
to negotiate intimidating drunkenness as I go about my life, especially at night and feel it may 
prevent me from wanting to go out at night for fear of encountering drunken patrons 
 
- finally, the premises and my flat are in a Cumulative Impact Area and it is acknowledged by the 
Council’s own review in 2022 that there is a concentration of alcohol related anti social behaviour 
within the Cumulative Impact Areas, focussed more at nighttime, as well as a concentration of 
alcohol related crime and these facts have not changed in the last 9 years. It is also clear that the 
incidents of complaints from residents within the Cumulative Impact Areas is considerably greater 
than outside, and in fact 86% of complaints relate to these areas 
 
For all the above reasons my life and my property will be adversely impacted by the granting of this 
licence and I strongly object. 
 
Regards 
REDACTED 
REDACTED 
 
 
Rep 5 
 
From: REDACTED 
Sent: 06 August 2023 12:58 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Licensing Act 2003- Jimmy & The Bee, 135 Goswell Road, Islington, London EC1V 7JY 
 
Dear Islington Council 
 
I'm writing to you about the consultation regarding the licence to serve alcohol at the corner cafe of 
the estate. 
 
Licensing Act 2003- Jimmy & The Bee, 135 Goswell Road, Islington, London EC1V 7JY 
 
The below concerns relate to public nuisance, crime and disorder, protection of children from harm 
and public safety: 
 
- The Triangle estate has been already facing security issues and already attracts a large number of 
non-residents hanging out to drink, smoke, and make noise.  
Due to the lack of security gates, we're having estate outsiders freely gathering in the estate, including 
homeless people and those who are intoxicated with alcohol and illegal drugs. We have been 
reporting this to the council as well as to the police for various occasions but the situation has seen 

Page 73



little improvement. This makes the estate feel unsafe and as a result we have had routine regular 
daily visits from police officers to help the situation. 

- There is already one pub and two off-licence businesses selling alcohol in the immediate
neighbourhood of this relatively small estate (one is on the estate and the other two are within 30m).
This is aggravating the situation above and creating a situation where those who are intoxicated use
the estate to continue to drink, urinate, splash and leave alcohol bottles and cans, in addition to
singing, shouting or fighting loudly until anti-social hours in the evening/morning. The design of the
estate unfortunately provides several hidden corners which provide shelter for the such activities and
antisocial behaviour.

Allowing a licence to another premise which is part of the estate will only aggravate these problems. 
Therefore, we strongly recommend the council to withhold this until the estate's security issues are 
resolved. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Kind regards 

REDACTED 
REDACTED 
REDACTED 

Page 74



Rep 8

Page 75



Page 76



Appendix 3

Page 77



Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule Appendix 4 

1. Any alcohol must be sold by DPS or a person authorised be the DPS at all times.

Conditions proposed by the Licensing Police – Agreed 

1) In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the
premises, the management will immediately ensure that:
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately;
(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any
identified suspects pending the arrival of the police;
(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any
identified crime scene pending the arrival of the police;
(d) Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all persons present
on the premises at all times during operating hours.

2) An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or
an authorised officer, which will record:
(a) Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party in regards to licensed activities
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons
(f) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol

3) CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is
open for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the
system is working properly and that the date and time are correct.
(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept
and made available to the police or other authorised officer on request;
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of
business for any reason;
(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full
length image of anyone entering;
(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of
the premises accessible to the public;
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped;
(g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the premises
who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view
footage on request.
(h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided
free of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject to the Data
Protection Act 2018) within 24 hours of any request .
(i) Signage stating that CCTV is in operation will be clearly and prominently displayed at the
premises.
(j) The use of CCTV at the premises shall be registered with the Information Commissioners
Office [ICO].

4) The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme.
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation.Page 78



(b) Only physical production of suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or
UK driving licence, or a holographically marked PASS scheme cards, will be accepted. A
screenshot or digital document copy will not be sufficient.

5) The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security. Such staff
and security levels will be disclosed, on request, to the Licensing Authority and the Police.

6) The premises licence holder shall ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters,
including the conditions of the premises licence, age restricted products and [if they are ever left
in charge of the shop] the operation of the CCTV system and how to deal with visits from
authorised officers. The licensee shall keep written records of training and instructions given to
each member of staff, detailing the areas covered to include the Licensing Objectives,
identifying persons under 25, making a challenge, acceptable proof of age & checking it, making
& recording a refusal, avoiding conflict & responsible alcohol retailing. Staff shall sign to confirm
that they have received and understood the training. All staff who work at the till will be trained
for their role on induction and be given refresher training every six months. The written training
records kept for each staff member will be produced to police & authorised council officers on
request.

7) The premises shall not be hired out to any third party.

8) The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons smoking outside the premises do
so in in an orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to ensure that there is no public
nuisance or obstruction of the public highway. A maximum of 6 smokers shall be permitted to
stand outside the frontage at any one time.

9) The premises to operate a zero tolerance policy to illegal drugs.

10) The premises licence holder shall endeavour to eliminate or minimise any nuisance arising
out of its licensable activities. In doing so the premises licence holder will work with enforcement
authorities where any issues are identified. A complaints procedure will be maintained in order
that local residents have a means of contact if necessary. A direct telephone number for the
manager at the premises shall be publically available at the times the premises is open. The
telephone number is to be made available to residents and businesses in the vicinity.

11) The premises shall only operate as a restaurant/cafe which provides food in the form of
substantial meals that are prepared on the premises. Alcohol shall only be served as an
ancillary to a meal to customers who are seated. There shall be no self-service of alcohol and
no vertical drinking in the premises at any time.

12) Alcohol will only be permitted to those customers seated outside the restaurant/cafe at
tables and chairs as authorised by any valid tables & chairs or pavement licence in place for the
outside area. Outside tables and chairs will be cleared away or rendered unusable by the time
specified on the appropriate licence.

13) A fire safety risk assessment shall be completed as per government guidelines on an annual
basis (Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005). (Maximum venue capacity will be
maintained at a level dictated by said risk assessment, as per legislation).

Conditions proposed by Islington’s Noise Team- Agreed Page 79



1. Noise, vibration, or odours shall not emanate from the premises to cause a nuisance to
nearby properties.

2. In the event of a noise/odour nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer,
the licensee shall take appropriate measures within a time frame set by and agreed with
the Council Officers to prevent any further recurrence of that nuisance.

3. Prominent, clear, and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting the public
to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly.

4. The delivery of licensable goods to the premises shall be restricted to the hours between
07:00 and 23:00 Monday-Saturday. No deliveries of licensable goods to the premises
shall be made on a Sunday or Bank Holiday.

5. Delivery drivers will conduct the delivery in a manner that will not cause a noise
disturbance to the occupiers of any residential properties surrounding the delivery
address.

6. The collection of refuse shall be restricted to the hours between 07:00 and 23:00
Monday-Saturday. No waste collections shall be made on a Sunday or Bank Holiday.

7. The outside frontage shall be swept and cleared of any rubbish and smoking litter
associated with the business towards the end of trade each evening.

Page 80



P
age 81



P
age 82



Page 83

Agenda Item B3



1.3. Relevant Representations: 

Licensing Authority No 

Metropolitan Police No - Conditions Agreed 

Noise No - Conditions Agreed 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: Three resident representations 

Other bodies No: 

2. Recommendations
2.1. To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the 

Licensing Act 2003. 

2.2. This premises is located in the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area therefore the 
Licensing Sub-Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states 
that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Sub-Committee is satisfied that 
there will be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 

2.3. The application form addresses the Cumulative Impact Area and Policy by 
suggesting a number of conditions in the Operating Schedule.  The applicants 
further endorse these conditions by accepting conditions suggested by the Police 
and Islington Council’s Noise Service.   

2.4. If the Licensing Sub-Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. Conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 
Operating Schedule (see appendix 4); and

ii. Any conditions deemed appropriate by the Licensing Sub-Committee to promote 
the four licensing objectives.

Page 84



3. Background 

3.1 The application describes the premises as being a restaurant, set over the ground and 
basement floors, with external seating.   
 

3.2 The premises was previously licensed under two separate businesses; 1. La Porchetta, 
from at least 2005 until early 2019 when the business went into administration and the 
premises closed and 2. Firebrand Pizza, from mid 2019 until May 2023 when the 
business went into administration and the premises closed.  The terms and conditions 
of these licenses are attached at Appendix 2. 
 

3.3 The application received three letters of representation from local residents.    
 

3.4 The applicant has accepted conditions requested with the Police and Islington’s Noise 
Service.   

 
 

4. Implications  
4.1. Financial Implications  

4.1.1. The Head of Finance reports that the applicant has paid the application fee of 
£315.00.  Should the application be refused, the fee is not refundable. 

4.2. Legal Implications  

4.2.1. The legal implications are set out in Paragraph 2. 

4.2.2. Legal advice will be provided at the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee as 
necessary. 

4.3. Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon 
Islington by 2030 

4.3.1. The Licensing Sub-Committee need to consider the impacts that the proposals will 
have on the environment.  An impact is defined as any change to the environment, 
whether positive or negative, wholly or partially resulting from Council activities.  
Almost all human activity has some impact on the environment, and it is very 
unlikely that any activity will not have any implications. 

4.4. Equalities Impact Assessment 

4.4.1. The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of 
opportunity, and foster good relations, between those who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 
2010).  The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or Page 85



minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in 
public life.  The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and 
promote understanding. 

4.4.2. An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required in relation to this report, because 
this is a decision relating to a Premises Licence application under the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

4.5. Planning implications 

4.5.1 The Planning department advised the property is not listed, but it is located within the 
Rosebery Avenue Conservation area. 

Planning History 
Planning permission was granted on 27/04/1993 for the “Change of use of ground floor 
and basement from A2 Branch Bank premises to A3 (food and drink - restaurant cafe hot 
food takeaway  Public House). ”. Ref (930246).  Restrictive condition 7, The use shall 
not operate except between the hours of 0800 and 1100 on any Day.  

Google Street View images verify the presence of the property during two distinct time 
periods: from July 2008 to July 2009, it operated under A3 Use as La Porchetta Pizzeria 
(Restaurant); and subsequently, from October 2020 to July 2021, it functioned as 
Firebrand Pizza (Restaurant). Most recently, starting from July 2022, the property has 
operated under A3 Use as Double Dragon (Restaurant). 

Given the above, the property has an established A3 use as Pizza Restaurant now within 
Class E of the Use Classes Order 1987 (as amended) and there are no planning 
enforcement cases open in relation to the property.  

5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations
5.1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines this application. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: 
Appendix 2: 
Appendix 3: 
Appendix 4: 

The application form; 
The previous premises licenses;  
The representations; 
Suggested conditions and map of premises location 

Report author: Licensing Service 
Tel: 020 75027 3031 
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

Page 86



Appendix 1

Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Application for a Premises Licence 
84-86 Rosebery Avenue EC1R 4QY 

 
Premises Description 
 
The application proposes a new premises licence to replace lapsed premises licence reference 
LN19508-051119 in respect of the former restaurant operating at the premises. 
 
The application proposes hours for licensable activities consistent with Licensing Policy 6 and 
updated licence conditions to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The premises will operate as a restaurant over ground and basement floors with external 
seating. 
 
Proposed Licensable Activities 
 

 Alcohol (on & off) 
Late Night Refreshment 
 

Opening Hours 

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 – 23:00 09:00 – 23:30 
Friday & Saturday 10:00 – 00:00 09:00 – 00:30 

 
NB. No Regulated Entertainment. 
 
Non-standard timings: 
 

• From the end of permitted hours on New Years’ Eve to the start of permitted hours 
on New Years’ Day 

• 00:00 on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
 
Proposed Conditions 
 
1. The supply of alcohol on the premises shall only be by waiter/waitress service to seated 

customers ancillary to a table meal, except for in the areas hatched on the licence plan. 
 
2. The supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, 

except for designated external seating areas. 
 
3. In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the 

premises, the management will immediately ensure that: 
 

(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called 
immediately; 

(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to 
apprehend any identified suspects pending the arrival of the police; 

(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to 
preserve any identified crime scene pending the arrival of the police; 

Page 99



(d) Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all 
persons present on the premises at all times during operating hours. 

 
 
4. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police 

or an authorised officer, which will record: 
 

(a) Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue; 
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party; 
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system; 
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service; 
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons; 
(f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons; 
(g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

 
 
5. CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises 

is open for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria: 
 

(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure 
that the system is working properly and that the date and time are correct; 

(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, 
will be kept and made available to the police or other authorised officer on 
request; 

(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than 
one day of business for any reason; 

(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a 
clear, full length image of anyone entering; 

(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any 
exterior part of the premises accessible to the public; 

(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time 
stamped; 

(g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on 
the premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or 
authorised Council officers to view footage on request. 

(h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will 
be provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request 
(subject to the Data Protection Act 2018) within 24 hours of any request. 

(i) Signage stating that CCTV is in operation will be clearly and prominently 
displayed at the premises. 

(j) The use of CCTV at the premises shall be registered with the Information 
Commissioners Office [ICO]. 

 
 
6. The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme: 

 
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation. 

Page 100



(b) Only physical production of suitable forms of photographic identification, such 
as passport or UK driving licence, or a holographically marked PASS scheme 
card, will be accepted. A screenshot or digital document copy will not be 
sufficient. 
 

7. The licensee shall ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters, including the 
conditions of the premises licence, age restricted products and the operation of the CCTV 
system and how to deal with visits from authorised officers. The licensee shall keep 
written records of training and instructions given to each member of staff, detailing the 
areas covered to include the Licensing Objectives, identifying persons under 25, making 
a challenge, acceptable proof of age & checking it, making & recording a refusal, avoiding 
conflict & responsible alcohol retailing. Staff shall sign to confirm that they have received 
and understood the training. All staff who work at the premises will be trained for their 
role on induction and be given refresher training every six months. The written training 
records kept for each staff member will be produced to police & authorised council 
officers on request. 

 
8. The premises to operate a zero-tolerance policy to drugs. 
 
9. Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to 

nearby properties. 
 
10. In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the 

licensee shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence. 
 
11. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting the public 

to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 
 
12. The delivery of licensable goods to the premises shall be restricted to the hours between 

07:00 and 23:00 Monday-Saturday. No deliveries of licensable goods to the premises 
shall be made on a Sunday or Bank Holiday. 

 
13. The collection of refuse shall be restricted to the hours between 07:00 and 23:00 

Monday-Saturday. No waste collections shall be made on a Sunday or Bank Holiday. 
 
14. The outside frontage shall be swept and cleared of any rubbish and smoking litter 

associated with the business towards the end of trade each evening. 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Rep 1 

From: REDACTED  
Sent: 11 August 2023 16:35 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: licence WK/230021470 84-86 Rosebery Avenue 

Dear Sir / Madam 

Having seen the premises licence application for Perilla posted on the door of 84-86 Rosebery Ave, 
EC1R 4QY, although unable to access it online, I would like to make a representation. 

As owner of a flat situated REDACTED these premises, I am directly concerned. Restaurants here in 
the past have proved to be noisy and not always willing to abide by the stipulated times. Opening 
hours until 11pm are acceptable but should not exceed that time for various reasons:- 

1. There is little (or no) sound insulation between their ceiling and the three residential flats above,
therefore any music or loud voices causes considerable disturbance.
2. The building is within the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area which strives to prevent crime and
disorder, and ensure public safety. Customers spilling out onto the street after midnight would not
be in line with this.
3. The restaurants in nearby Exmouth Market close at 10.00, 10.30, 10.45 or 11.00; why should this
be any different?

Looking forward to hearing your response, 

Regards 

REDACTED 
REDACTED 

Rep 2 

From: REDACTED  
Sent: 11 August 2023 16:26 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: WK/230021470). 

To whom it may concern, 

This email is about an application for a licence at 84-86 Rosebery Avenue (WK/230021470). I have 
been unable to examine the licence due to the licence register being temporarily unavailable on the 
council’s website.  

 I own a flat REDACTED the premises.  

I understand that the application is for longer licencing hours. 

In the past we have had trouble with noise from the restaurant below, particularly recorded music. I 
object to the longer hours – partly the noise of the music, partly the noise of people leaving and 

Appendix 3

Page 111



drinking outside. The first floor and above are all residential and so an extension so the hours would 
make the flats very noisy and unpleasant to live in.  
 
The premises are in Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area – a later licence would not be in in line with 
Council’s aims. It’s likely to lead to an increase in crime.  
 
Best 
 

 
 
 
Rep 3 
 
From: REDACTED  
Sent: 11 August 2023 16:05 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Cc: REDACTED 
Subject: Application for Premises Licence - 84-86 Rosebery Avenue - WK/230021470 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
I am writing with regards to the application for a licence at 84-86 Rosebery Avenue 
(WK/230021470).  I have unfortunately been unable to examine the licence in detail due to the 
licence register being temporarily unavailable on the council’s website. 
 
However, my understanding is that the application is for longer licensing hours.  I live REDACTED the 
premises and had significant issues with noise, specifically from loud music, during the previous 
licence holder’s tenancy. I would appreciate representations from Perilla that they will either seek to 
better insulate the premises and consider the placement of speakers or that they will not play music. 
 
I also note that the premises are in the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area, and so question the 
appropriateness of a later licence given the existing impact of the late night venues in the area. I do 
not see this as being in line with the council’s objectives in relation to the prevention of crime and 
disorder, the prevention of public nuisance and ensuring public safety.  
 
To clarify, I am supportive of Perilla being granted a licence, but object to the extension of hours and 
would like to understand what steps will be taken to ensure my experience with the previous 
occupants will not be repeated. 
 
I look forward to hearing back from you and to being kept updated on the Licensing Committee’s 
review of this application. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
REDACTED 
REDACTED 
REDACTED 

Page 112



Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule     Appendix 4  

1.  The supply of alcohol on the premises shall only be by waiter/waitress service to seated customers 
ancillary to a table meal, except for in the areas hatched on the licence plan.  

 
2.  The supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, except for 

designated external seating areas.  
 
3.  In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the premises, 

the management will immediately ensure that:  
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately;  
(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any 
identified suspects pending the arrival of the police;  
(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any identified 
crime scene pending the arrival of the police;  
(d) Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all persons present on 
the premises at all times during operating hours.  

 
4.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or an 

authorised officer, which will record:  
(a) Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue;  
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party;  
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system;  
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service;  
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons;  
(f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons;  
(g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol  

 
5.  CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is open for 

licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:  
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is 
working properly and that the date and time are correct;  
(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept and 
made available to the police or other authorised officer on request;  
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of business 
for any reason;  
(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length 
image of anyone entering;  
(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the 
premises accessible to the public;  
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped;  
(g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the premises who 
can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on 
request.  
(h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free 
of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject to the Data Protection Act 
2018) within 24 hours of any request.  
(i) Signage stating that CCTV is in operation will be clearly and prominently displayed at the 
premises.  
(j) The use of CCTV at the premises shall be registered with the Information Commissioners Office 
[ICO].  

 
6.  The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme:  

(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation.  
Page 113



(b) Only physical production of suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK 
driving licence, or a holographically marked PASS scheme card, will be accepted. A screenshot or 
digital document copy will not be sufficient.  

 
7.  The licensee shall ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters, including the conditions of the 

premises licence, age restricted products and the operation of the CCTV system and how to deal 
with visits from authorised officers. The licensee shall keep written records of training and 
instructions given to each member of staff, detailing the areas covered to include the Licensing 
Objectives, identifying persons under 25, making a challenge, acceptable proof of age & checking it, 
making & recording a refusal, avoiding conflict & responsible alcohol retailing. Staff shall sign to 
confirm that they have received and understood the training. All staff who work at the premises will 
be trained for their role on induction and be given refresher training every six months. The written 
training records kept for each staff member will be produced to police & authorised council officers 
on request.  

 
8.  The premises to operate a zero-tolerance policy to drugs.  
 
9.  Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby 

properties.  
 
10. In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the  

licensee shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence.  
 
11. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting the public to respect 

the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly.  
 

12. The delivery of licensable goods to the premises shall be restricted to the hours between 07:00 and 
23:00 Monday-Saturday. No deliveries of licensable goods to the premises shall be made on a 
Sunday or Bank Holiday.  

 
13. The collection of refuse shall be restricted to the hours between 07:00 and 23:00 Monday-Saturday. 

No waste collections shall be made on a Sunday or Bank Holiday.  
 
14. The outside frontage shall be swept and cleared of any rubbish and smoking litter associated with 

the business towards the end of trade each evening.  
 
Conditions proposed by Islington’s Noise Service – Agreed 

1. There shall be no motorised local deliveries of take-away food or drink from the premises at any time. 
 

2. The premises licence holder shall ensure that any third party deliver/courier company is instructed to 
comply with the following: 
(a) Any refusals will be logged by the delivery driver. Records of all refusals will be obtained from the 

delivery company and provided to the relevant authorities upon  request; and 
(b) Couriers will be trained on relevant aspects of the Licensing Act 2003 including underage sales, 

sales to a person who is drunk, obtaining alcohol for a child or a person who is drunk and 
delivering alcohol to someone under the age of 18. 

 
3. Any person or automated system taking an order for the supply of alcohol on behalf of the premises 

licence holder will inform customers that proof of age by way of photographic driving licence, passport 
or a form of identification with the PASS hologram may be required before alcohol is supplied in 
accordance with the Challenge 25 age verification scheme. 

 
 Page 114



Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police- Agreed 

1) The supply of alcohol on the premises shall only be by waiter/waitress service to seated customers 
ancillary to a table meal except to persons in the designated wine bar or wine cellar area of the 
premises [hatched on the licence plan] where no table meal is required .

2) The supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, except for 
such supply to persons seated and dining within any authorised designated external seating area 
covered by waiter/waitress service.

3) The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security. Such staff and 
security levels will be disclosed, on request, to the Licensing Authority and the Police.  The need for 
door supervisors will be assessed by way of risk assessment and cognisance will be taken of any 
police advice.

4) The premises shall not be hired out to any third party.

5) The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons smoking outside the premises do so in in 
an orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to ensure that there is no public nuisance or 
obstruction of the public highway. A maximum of 6 smokers shall be permitted to stand outside the 
frontage at any one time.

6) A fire safety risk assessment shall be completed as per government guidelines on an annual basis 
(Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005). (Maximum venue capacity will be maintained at a 
level dictated by said risk assessment, as per legislation).

7) There shall be no motorised deliveries of take-away food or drink from the premises at any time.

8) The premises licence holder shall ensure that any third party deliver/courier company is instructed to 
comply with the following:

a. Any refusals will be logged by the delivery driver. Records of all refusals will be obtained from the 
delivery company and provided to the relevant authorities upon request; and

b. Couriers will be trained on relevant aspects of the Licensing Act 2003 including underage sales, 
sales to a person who is drunk, obtaining alcohol for a child or a person who is drunk and delivering 
alcohol to someone under the age of 18.

9)  Any person or automated system taking an order for the supply of alcohol on behalf of the 
premises licence holder will inform customers that proof of age by way of photographic driving 
licence, passport or a form of identification with the PASS hologram may be required before 
alcohol is supplied in accordance with the Challenge 25 age verification scheme.

Page 115



P
age 116



P
age 117



P
age 118


	Agenda
	A6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	B1 Naar, 94 Old Street, EC1 9AY - New premises licence
	B2 Jimmy and the Bee, 135 Goswell Road, EC1V 7JY - New premises licence
	B3 Perilla Dining, 84-86 Rosebery Avenue, EC1R 4QY - New premises licence


{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}



